
LEGACY DECATUR BOARD MEETING

THURSDAY, MARCH 23, 2023

5:00 P.M.

DECATUR LEGACY PARK-AUDITORIUM

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FROM JANUARY 26, 2023

3. ACTION ITEMS

A. PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION OF COMMERCIAL KITCHEN LETTER OF INTENT BY

REFUGEE WOMEN’S NETWORK – Staff met with Refugee Women’s Network (RWN)

to discuss a partnership to renovate the commercial kitchen for use by the RWN

Chef’s Club program. RWN staff will present their proposal.

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the Executive Committee to review and

approve a negotiated letter of intent to move this concept forward and provide the

framework for a lease. Legacy Decatur staff will bring the lease to the full board for

approval.

B. PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH

THE DECATUR ARTS ALLIANCE – Arts Alliance shall be responsible for the

management and operations of the art studio aspect of the Creative Village. Arts

Alliance shall review artistic portfolios and credentials of tenants and assure a variety

of artistic mediums are represented in the art studios and residential spaces. Arts

alliance will receive 10% of Creative Village rental revenue, which will be dedicated

to the sponsorship of arts activities at Legacy Park.

Staff recommends that the board authorize the finalization of a management

agreement based on the terms already discussed for review and approval by the

executive committee.

4. PROJECT UPDATES

● Inclusive Playground

● Postal Pond Boardwalk

● Bicentennial projects and fundraising

● Creative Village

● Parking Plan

5. ADJOURN



Legacy Decatur Board Meeting

January 26, 2003

The regular meeting of the Legacy Decatur board was called to order by Chair Tony Powers.
Board members attending:  Andrea Arnold, Mark Arnold, Mark Ethun, Patti Garrett, Peggy
Merriss, Paul Mitchell and Brian Smith.   Also present:  Lyn Menne, Madeleine Henner, Scott
Doyon and Zoe Seiler.

The minutes of the December 8, 2022 business meeting were presented.  On a motion by Patti
Garrett, second by Andrea Arnold and all board members present voting aye, the board
approved the minutes as presented.

Lyn Menne asked the board to confirm officers for 2023.   Tony Powers (chair), Andrea Arnold
(secretary) and Peggy Merriss (treasurer) have indicated they are willing to continue to serve in
these roles.  Meredith Struby asked that she not be reappointed to a new board term when her
current term expires in March of this year.  She currently serves as vice chair.   Because Ms.
Struby represented the Public Facilities Authority, Lyn Menne and Andrea Arnold will work to
identify a replacement from the PFA board.  Ms. Menne asked if there were any nominations
from the floor for the positions for chair, secretary and treasurer. Hearing none, a motion to
reappoint Tony Powers, Andrea Arnold and Peggy Merriss was requested.   On a motion by
Peggy Merriss, second by Mark Arnold and all board members present voting aye, the board
reappointed Tony Powers as chair, Andrea Arnold as secretary and Peggy Merriss as treasurer.

Madeleine Henner provided an update on the Creative Village project and introduced Atticus
LeBlanc and Charles Grosse from PadSplit to review the proposed contract for the management
of the residential component of the Creative Village. LeBlanc provided the history of PadSplit
and its missional commitment to affordable housing. Under the proposed contract, PadSplit
would receive 12% of the rental revenue for the Creative Village buildings, Edwards and
Trustees. In return, PadSplit would be responsible for the marketing, application process,
background checks, rent collection, and leasing the two buildings. Additionally, Two Keys
Management will oversee unit quality control, building maintenance, and tenant relations. The
percentage of rental revenue going to Two Keys Management will be negotiated between 4-6%
of the rental revenue.

On a motion by Peggy Merriss, second by Mark Arnold and all board members present voting
aye, the board authorized the staff to move forward with a contract with Padsplit to manage the
residential component of the Creative Village as presented for a term of two years.

Madeleine Henner presented a request to revise current event rental rates. The new event rates
increased outdoor event rentals to $100 for the first two hours and $25 for each additional hour;
divided Leigh Cottage into room and floor rentals; and introduced a ceremony-only wedding
rental option.



On a motion by Andrea Arnold, second by Brian Smith and all board members present voting
aye, the board approved the recommended changes to the event rental rates.

Lyn Menne presented a resolution confirming the purpose of the December 8, 2022 executive
session was for the purpose of discussing personnel matters.  On a motion by Patti Garrett,
second by Peggy Merriss and all board members present voting aye, the board adopted the
resolution and authorized the chair to execute the required affidavit confirming the purpose of
the meeting.

Staff provided an update on the Accessible and Inclusive Playground and the Creative Village
Project.   There was no additional business.  On a motion by Brian Smith, second by Peggy
Merriss and all board members present voting aye, the board voted to adjourn the meeting.



MEMORANDUM

TO: LEGACY DECATUR BOARD

FROM: MADELEINE HENNER

RE: REFUGEE WOMEN’S NETWORK USE OF HAWKINS COMMERCIAL KITCHEN

DATE: MARCH 24, 2023

The purpose of this memorandum is to recommend that the Legacy Decatur Board authorize

staff to negotiate a letter of intent to lease the Legacy Park Hawkins Hall Commercial Kitchen to

the Refugee Women’s Network (RWN).   RWN will use the kitchen space to create a licensed

commercial kitchen to grow their Chefs Club program which supports food entrepreneurs to

develop their skills and become licensed to open their own restaurants or catering business.

Legacy Decatur will be responsible for updating the external kitchen entrance to create a usable

dock and ramp as well as converting a storage closet into an ADA bathroom. Legacy Decatur will

also be responsible for small plumbing and electrical updates to prepare the space for tenants.

The Public Facilities Authority (PFA) fund has $80,000 identified for the commercial kitchen

repairs. Legacy Decatur staff has prepared a Request for Proposals for the construction of these

improvements in coordination with the City’s Public Works Dept. RWN staff have approached

Legacy Decatur staff with a fundraising plan to assist with this expense and reduce the

investment needed from the PFA fund.

A letter of intent would provide the necessary documentation of our support of this project to

allow RWN to apply for grants and other funding.

The concept meets the overall vision and goals of the Legacy Park Master Plan by repurposing

historic buildings, encouraging a diversity of use and users, and generating income for the

property. Furthermore, a Chefs Club presence at Legacy Park would allow for licensed in-house

catering for events as well as additional fundraising opportunities like specialized cooking

classes and pop-up restaurant nights.

When RWN initially toured Legacy Park in 2021, they dreamed of not only moving their offices

to Legacy Park, but also occupying the commercial kitchen in Hawkins Hall. In fact, the Letter of

Intent presented to the Master Plan committee in July 2021 outlined RWN leasing both Williams

Cottage and the commercial kitchen space. However, RWN decided to first settle into new

offices before taking on the commercial kitchen project. Access to the commercial kitchen

would allow RWN to grow their Chef’s Club program.



In 2019, RWN responded to the need for increased accessibility and resources for talented

refugee and immigrant chefs with the Chefs Club Program. Chefs Club, with support, will scale

to allow small business development of underrepresented populations along with a more

inclusive economic landscape in the community. Local entrepreneurs will graduate from the

subsidized rent model to brick-and-mortar spaces including food trucks, restaurants, cafes, and

kiosks for continued business development.

While RWN does not yet have a brick and mortar kitchen training facility, they have

implemented the infrastructure of the program with technical training and certifications,

business plans and marketing, financial assistance, and networking opportunities. With a

dedicated commercial kitchen, Chefs could increase their output to better meet the demand

from the community.

Scope of Work Required by Legacy Decatur:

The project involves work at the north entrance to the commercial kitchen in Hawkins Hall

located at Decatur Legacy Park.  The kitchen area consists of three separate kitchen spaces. The

first kitchen adjourning Hawkins Hall will remain a warming kitchen for events. The remaining

two kitchens will be used as a separate teaching and catering kitchen to be leased and managed

by Refugee Women’s Network. Work is intended to provide improved exterior access, the

addition of an ADA bathroom, electrical upgrades, and minor plumbing upgrades to allow the

space to function independently from the Hawkins Hall Warming Kitchen.

1. Demolition of existing loading dock at the north entrance to the building and

construction of a new loading dock, ramp and stairs to provide accessible, exterior

access to the kitchen space (architectural drawings attached)

2. Demolition of existing janitors closet in northern most kitchen and expansion of the

space to create a single ADA compliant restroom.

3. Upgrade of the electrical panel and the installation of electrical outlets to provide

adequate service for planned appliance locations (sketch attached)

4. Installation of one new stainless steel triple compartment sink in the warming kitchen

and replacement of existing sink fixtures in the middle kitchen area.  To include

inspection and connection to existing grease traps to meet code.

5. Installation of a door between the warming kitchen and  two other kitchen areas with

emergency exiting capabilities.  The goal is to restrict access from the leased kitchen

area into the warming kitchen but provide an emergency exit option to meet safety

requirements.

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the Executive Committee to review and approve a

negotiated letter of intent to move this concept forward and provide the framework for a lease.

Legacy Decatur staff will bring the lease to the full board for approval.



BLDG
SECT.

1
0
0
A

SHEET DESIGNATION

100

ELEVATION, SECTION OR
DETAIL IS DRAWN

WINDOW NUMBER TAG6

SHEET NUMBER WHERE

INDICATES ELEVATION OR DETAIL
LETTER/NUMBER COMBINATION

REVISION TAG

NOTE TAG

WALL TAG

K1
A2.1

2

ROOM NUMBER TAG

DOOR NUMBER TAG100A

1

A1
A3

1
A3

BUILDING SECTION

DRAWING DESIGNATION

WALL SECTION

1

REVISION CLOUD

# COLUMN LINE

USE NUMBERS HORIZONTALLY, LEFT TO
RIGHTUSE LETTERS VERTICALLY, TOP TO
BOTTOM

A5D B

A

C

ELEVATION

EXISTING WALLS & DOORS

NEW WALLS & DOORS

DEMOLITION WALLS & DOORS

1
A5

DETAIL

1
E EXISTING ILLUMINATED EXIT LIGHT

ILLUMINATED EXIT LIGHT

CONCRETE

WOOD FINISH

WOOD SHIMS

WOOD BLOCKING

STEEL

POROUS FILL

LARGE SCALE
PLYWOOD

INSULATION RIGID

INSULATION BATTS

COMPACTED FILL
EARTH OR

C.M.U.

BRICK (SECTION)

ALUMINUM

EMERGENCY EGRESS LIGHT
W/ BACKUP BATTERY

E

ABOVE FINISH FLOOR
ACCESS PANEL
ACOUSTIC CEILING TILE
ACOUSTICAL PLASTER
AIR CONDITIONING
ALUMINUM
ANCHOR BOLT
ANODIZED
APRROXIMATELY
AREA DRAIN
ARCHITECT(URAL)
ASPHALT

BASE PLATE
BASEMENT
BEAM
BEARING
BITUMINOUS
BLOCKING
BOARD
BOTTOM
BRICK
BUILDING

CARPET
CASED OPENING
CASEMENT
CEILING
CEILING HEIGHT
CENTER LINE
CERAMIC TILE
CHAIR RAIL
CLEAR(ANCE)
CLOSET
COLUMN
CONCRETE
CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT
CONSTRUCTION
CONTINUOUS
CONTROL JOINT
CORRIDOR
COUNTER
COURSE

DEMOLITION
DEPARTMENT
DIAGONAL
DIAMETER
DIMENSION
DITTO
DIVISION
DOOR
DOUBLE HUNG
DOWN SPOUT
DRAIN
DRAIN TILE
DRAWING

ELECTRIC
ELECTRIC WATER COOLER
ELECTRICAL PANEL BOARD
ELEVATION
EMERGENCY
ENCLOSE, ENCLOSURE
ENGINEER(ING)
ENTRANCE
EQUAL
EQUIPMENT
EXHAUST
EXISTING
EXPANSION BOLT
EXPANSION JOINT
EXTERIOR

FACE BRICK
FEET, FOOT
FENCE
FINISH
FINISH FLOOR
FIRE EXTINGUSHER CABINET
FIRE HOSE CABINET
FIREPLACE
FLOOR(ING)
FLOOR DRAIN
FLUORESCENT
FOOTING
FOUNDATION
FRESH AIR
FURNISHED BY OTHERS

GAGE, GAUGE
GALVANIZED
GENERAL CONTRACTOR
GLASS
GLASS BLOCK
GRADE, GRADING
GYPSUM WALL BOARD

HANDICAP
HARDWARE
HARDWOOD
HEADER
HEATING
HEATING/VENTING/AIR CONDITIONING
HEAVY DUTY
HEIGHT
HOLLOW CORE
HOLLOW METAL
HORIZONTAL
HOSE BIBB
HOT WATER HEATER

INSIDE DIAMETER
INCLUDE(D)(ING)
INSULATE
INTERIOR

JANITOR’S CLOSET

KITCHEN
KNOCK DOWN
KNOCKOUT

LABEL
LAMINATE(D)
LAVATORY
LEFT HAND
LENGTH, LONG
LIGHTWEIGHT
LINTEL
LIVE LOAD
LOUVER

AFF
AP
ACT
ACPL
A/C
ALUM
AB
ANOD
APPROX
AD
ARCH
ASPH

BP
BSMT
BM
BRG
BIT
BLKG
BD
BOT
BRK
BLDG

CPT
CO
CSMT
CLG
C/H
CL
CT
CR
CLR
CLS
COL
CONC
CMU
CONST
CONT
CJ
CORR
CTR
CRS

DEM
DEPT
DIAG
DIAM
DIM
DO
DIV
DR
DH
DS
D.
DT
DWG

ELEC
EWC
EP
ELEV
EMER
ENCL
ENG
ENT
EQ
EQUIP
EXH
EXIST
EB
EJ
EXT

FB
FT
FN
FIN
FIN FL
FEC
FHC
FPL
FLR
FD
FLUOR
FTG
FDN
FRA
FBO

GA
GALV
GC
GL
GLB
GD
GWB

HC
HDWR
HWD
HDR
HTG
HVAC
HD
HGT
HOC
HM
HORIZ
HB
HW

ID
INCL
INSUL
INT

JAN

KIT
KD
KO

LBL
LAM
LAV
LH
LG
LW
LTL
LL
LVR

MAN HOLE
MANUFACTURER
MASONRY
MASONRY OPENING
MATERIAL
MAXIMUM
MECHANICAL
METAL
METAL BUILDING MANUFACTURER
METAL FLOOR DECKING
METAL ROOF DECKING
MINIMUM
MISCELLANEOUS
MOLDING, MOULDING
MOUNTING

NOMINAL
NOT IN CONTRACT
NOT TO SCALE
NUMBER

ON CENTER
OPENING
OPPOSITE
OPPOSITE HAND
OUTSIDE DIAMETER
OUTSIDE FACE
OVERALL
OVERHANG

PANEL
PAVEMENT
PAINTED
PARTICAL BOARD
PLASTER
PLASTIC LAMINATE
PLATE
PLATE GLASS
PLYWOOD
POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
PORTABLE FIRE EXTINGUISHER
POUND
POUNDS/SQUARE FOOT
POUNDS/SQUARE INCH
PRECAST CONCRETE
PREFINISHED
PROPERTY LINE
PROPOSED

QUARRY TILE

RADIUS
RISER
RECEPTACLE/ELECTRICAL
REFRIGERATOR
REGISTER
REINFORCED
REMOVE
REQUIRED
RESILIENT
RETURN
RETURN AIR
REVISION
RIGHT HAND
RIGHT OF WAY
ROOF DRAIN
ROOM
ROUGH OPENING

SCHEDULE
SECTION
SHEATHING
SHEET
SIMILAR
SLIDING DOOR
SOLID CORE
SOLID CORE WOOD
SOUTHERN YELLOW PINE
SPECIFICATION
SPRINKLER
SQUARE FEET
STAINLESS STEEL
STORAGE
STRUCTURAL
SUSPENDED
SYSTEM

TELEPHONE
TELEVISION
THICK(NESS)
THIN COAT PLASTER
THRESHOLD
THROUGH
TOILET
TONGUE and GROOVE
TOP OF SLAB
TOP OF STEEL
TOP OF WALL
TREAD
TYPICAL

UNFINISHED
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

VAPOR BARRIER
VENT THRU ROOF
VERTICAL
VINYL BASE COVE
VINYL BASE STRAIGHT
VINYL COMPOSITION TILE
VINYL WALL COVERING

WAINSCOT
WALL HUNG
WATER CLOSET
WATER PROOF
WELDED WIRE FABRIC
WIDTH, WIDE
WINDOW
WIRE GLASS
WITH
WITHOUT
WOOD
WOOD BASE

MH
MFR
MAS
MO
MTL
MAX
MECH
MTL
MTL BLDG MFR
MFD
MRD
MIN
MISC
MLDG
MTG

NOM
NIC
NTS
NO, #

OC
OPG
OPP
OPH
OD
OF
OA
OH

PNL
PVMT
PTD
PBD
PLAST
PLAM
PL
PLGL
PWD
PVC
PFE
LB
PSF
PSI
PC CONC
PREFIN
PL
PROP

QT

RAD
R.
REC
REF
REG
REINF
REM
REQD
RES
RET
RA
REV
RH
ROW
RD
RM
RO

SCH
SEC
SHTH
SHT
SIM
SL DR
SC
SCW
SYP
SPEC
SPR
SF
SS
STOR
STRUCT
SUSP
SYS

TELE
TV
THK
TCP
THRD
THRU
TOIL
T&G
TSL
TOS
TOW
T.
TYP

UNFIN
UNO

VB
VTR
VERT
VBC
VBS
VCT
VWC

WSCT
WH
WC
WP
WWF
W.
WIN
WG
W/
W/O
WD
WB

1. Contract documents to be utilized for the purpose of this project will be an AIA Document A101, standard form of 
agreement between owner & contractor and A201, General Conditions of the contract for construction.

2. All existing conditions shall be verified by the Sub−Contractor.  Failure to verify the existing conditions shall not 
relieve the General Contractor of any expenses or responsibilities resulting from that failure.

3. Each contractor is responsible for obtaining all necessary building permits, licenses & Certificates of Occupancy.  
Copies of permits are to be posted prior to commencing work.  One approved set of drawings shall be kept on the 
premises at all times.

4. All Sub−Contractors are to receive full working Construction Documents from the General Contractor for Bidding & 
Construction.

5. All installations shall comply with all local & national codes and with the requirements of the Owner.  All work shall 
include the completion of such details not mentioned or shown which are necessary for the successful operation of all 
systems shown.

2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE WITH 2014−18 GEORGIA AMENDMENTS
2018 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE WITH 2015 GEORGIA AMENDMENTS
2018 INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE WITH 2014−15 GEORGIA AMENDMENTS
2018 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE WITH 2013 GEORGIA AMENDMENTS
2020 NEC NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE WITH NO GEORGIA AMENDMENTS 
2015 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE WITH 2011 & 2012 GA SUPPLEMENTS & AMENDMENTS
2018 INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE

OCCUPANCY: BUSINESS

CONSTRUCTION TYPE EXISTING V

Hawkins Building
Restoom Renovation

& ADA Ramp
at Legacy Park

500 S. Columbia Drive
Decatur, GA 30030

RENOVATE AN EXISTING BATHROOM TO MEET ADA 
BY ADDING A WALL AND NEW PLUMBING FIXTURES.

ALSO  ADDING ADA RAMP AT THE SIDE ENTRANCE.

DRAWING ABBREVIATIONS SYMBOLS & MATERIALS SCOPE OF WORK CODE ANALYSIS DRAWING INDEX
6991 Peachtree Industrial Blvd

Building 700

Norcross,  Georgia   30092

p  404.330.9798

www.proficientengineering.com

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project Number

324 Eastland Drive
Decatur, GA 30030

o: 404.378.7431
c:  403.307.0771

e: trey@treylucas.com
www.treylucas.com

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS NOT
RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

12" = 1'-0"

1.0

COVER

H
a
w

k
in

s
 R

e
n
o

v
a
ti
o
n

L
e

g
a

c
y
 P

a
rk

D
e
c
a
tu

r,
 G

A
 3

0
0

3
0

Checker

Author

8.3.22

Project Number

8.3.22

12" = 1'-0"
1

COVER

Sheet List

Sheet
Number Sheet Name

A1 ARCHITECTURAL PLANS & DETAILS

1.0 COVER

P1 GENERAL

P2 FLOOR PLAN

E1 GENERAL & FLOOR PLAN



DN

DN

DN

6"

V
A
R
IE
S

0
" 
T
O

1
4
"

M
A
X
.

3
"

C
L
R
.

8
"

M
IN
. 1

2

1

2

EXISTING
CONCRETE
PAVING

~w"
CHAMFER
TYPICAL

GUARD-RAIL/
HAND-RAIL

SLABSEE
PLAN

2-#4
BARS
CONTINUOUS

TURN W.W.R.
DOWNAS
SHOWN

LANDING

5' - 0"1
' -

 0
"

3
0

' -
 0

"
9

' -
 6

"

H.R.

H.R.

G.R.

EXISTING STAIRS TO REMAIN

UP

GRADE

EXISTING MOP SINK

NEW HAND SINK

NEW TOILET

1
' -

 6
"

NEW PARTITION

A1
4

9
' -

 0
"

6' - 1"

DOOR TO MATCH
EXISTING DOORS

G.R.

REMOVE WALL

REMOVE WOOD
DOCK

EXISTING DOCK
TO REMAIN

STAIRS TO REMAIN

1
' -

 6
"

A

B

NEW 36"
DOOR

EXISTING HAND SINK

EXISTING MOP SINK

R 2' - 6
"

C

D

E

9
' -

 0
"

6' - 1"

K
H

A1 5

W
E

T

A1

6 RESTROOM

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
8' - 6"

A

CB

K

H

D

EXISTING MOP SINK

1' - 6"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
8' - 6"

A

C

E

D

EXISTING  
CEILING TO 
REMAIN

EXISTING  
CEILING TO 
REMAIN

EXISTING  
CEILING TO 
REMAIN

EXISTING  
CEILING TO 
REMAIN

EXISTING  
CEILING TO 
REMAIN

EXISTING  
CEILING TO 
REMAIN

ARMSTRONG 
KITCHEN ZONE 
2’x4’ LAY−IN 
CEILING COLOR
#673 WHITE 9' - 0"

CONT. 3 5/8" METAL 
STUD TRACK

3 5/8" METAL STUDS
@ 16" O.C.

5/8" M.R. GWB EACH SIDE, CONTINUE
TO UNDERSIDE OF TRUSSES/FRAMING
SECURE TO STUDS WITH #6 SCREWS
@ 8" O.C. (EDGES) & 12" O.C. (FIELD)
TAP & FINISH JOINTS, PAINT

SOUND ATTENUATION INSULATION
@ BATHROOM 

CEILING AS SCHEDULED

A TYPICAL INTERIOR PARTITION

F.F.E.

EXISTING STRUCTURE/DECK

0
' -

 6
"

BASE AS SCHEDULED

6991 Peachtree Industrial Blvd

Building 700

Norcross,  Georgia   30092

p  404.330.9798

www.proficientengineering.com

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project Number

324 Eastland Drive
Decatur, GA 30030

o: 404.378.7431
c:  403.307.0771

e: trey@treylucas.com
www.treylucas.com

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS NOT
RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

As indicated

A1

ARCHITECTURAL
PLANS & DETAILS

H
a
w

k
in

s
 R

e
n
o

v
a
ti
o
n

L
e

g
a

c
y
 P

a
rk

D
e
c
a
tu

r,
 G

A
 3

0
0

3
0

Checker

III

8.3.22

Project Number

8.3.22

3/16" = 1'-0"
1

Level 1

TOILET ADA ROOM NOTES:
THE RESTROOM LAYOUT IS BASED ON & COMPLIES WITH THE "AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT" LATEST REGULATIONS.  PLEASE NOTE THE 
FOLLOWING SECTIONS:
4.16.15 FLUSH CONTROLS.  
" FLUSH CONTROLS SHALL BE HAND OPERATED OR AUTOMATIC AND SHALL COMPLY WITH 4.27.4.  CONTROLS FOR FLUSH VALVES SHALL BE 

MOUNTED ON THE WIDE SID OF THE TOILET NO MORE THAN 44" ABOVE THE FLOOR.
4.19.4 EXPOSED PIPES & SURFACES
" HOT WATER * DRAINS PIPES UNDER LAVATORIES SHALL BE INSULATED OR OTHERWISE CONFIGURED TO PROTECT AGAINST CONTACT.  

THERE SHALL BE NO SHARP OR ABRASIVE SURFACES UNDER THE LAVATORIES.
" 4.19.5 FAUCETS SHALL COMPLY WITH 4.27.4 LEVER−OPERATED PUSH−TYPE AND CONICALLY CONTROLLED MECHANISM ARE EXAMPLES OF 

THE DESIGNS.  SELF−CLOSING VALVES ARE ALLOWED IF THE FAUCET REMAINS OPEN FOR AT LEAST 10 SECONDS.
4.26.2 GRAB BARS
" OUTSIDE DIAMETER TO BE MINIMUM OF 1 1/4", MAXIMUM OF 1 1/2".  SPACE BETWEEN WALL AND GRAB BAR TO BE 1 1/2".
4.27.4 OPERATION
" CONTROLS & OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE OPERABLE WITH ONE HAND AND SHALL NOT REQUIRE TIGHT GRASPING, PINCHING OR 

TWISTING OF THE WRIST.  THE FORCE REQUIRED TO ACTIVATE CONTROLS SHALL BE NO GREATER THAN 5 POUNDS OF FORCE.

TOILET ACCESSORY NOTES:TOILET ACCESSORY NOTES:TOILET ACCESSORY NOTES:TOILET ACCESSORY NOTES:
1. PROVIDE SOLID 2"x WOOD BLOCKING BETWEEN STUDS FOR MOUNTING OF ALL ACCESSORIES.
2. ALL SUBSTITUTE FIXTURES AND ACCESSORIES SHALL BE ADA COMPLIANT.
3. INSULATE ALL EXPOSED H.W. SUPPLY & DRAIN LINES.

MARK DESCRIPTION MANUFACTUER MODEL NOTES MOUNTING HEIGHT                                                             
A WATER CLOSET SEE PLUMBING DRAWINGS WHITE WITH SEAT 17"−18" A.F.F. TO TOP OF SEAT
B LAVATORY SEE PLUBMING DRAWINGS WHITE 34" A.F.F. TO TOP OF SINK RIM
C 1 1/2" DIA. x 42" GRAB BAR BOBRICK B−6080.99x42 STAINLESS STEEL 36" A.F.F. TO TOP OF BAR − HORIZONTALLY
D 1 1/2" DIA. x 36" GRAB BAR BOBRICK B−6080.99x36 STAINLESS STEEL 36" A.F.F. TO TOP OF BAR − HORIZONTALLY
E 1 1/2" DIA. x 24" GRAB BAR BOBRICK B−6080.99x24 STAINLESS STEEL 40" A.F.F. TO BOTTOM OF BAR − VERTICALY
F NOT USED BOBRICK B−72860 STAINLESS STEEL 48" A.F.F. TO CENTER OF DISPNSER
G TOILET TISSUE DISPENSER BOBRICK B−264 STAINLESS STEEL 24" A.F.F. TO CENTERLINE OF DISPENSER
H 18"x36" FRAMED MIRROR BOBRICK B−165−1836 STAINLESS STEEL 38" A.F.F. TO BOTTOM OF REFLECTING SURFACE
I NOT USED−LIGHT FIXTURE SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS SCONCE/CEILING MOUNTED
J EXHAUST FAN SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS CEILING MOUNTED AND VENTED TO OUTSIDE
K P−TRAP INSULATION KIT
L NOT USED BOBRICK B−211144" STAINLESS STEEL 44" A.F.F. TO BOTTOM OF DISPENSER
M  HOOK BOBRICK 2116 CLOTHES HOOK STAINLESS STEEL 48" A.F.F. TO TOP OF HOOK

3/16" = 1'-0"
2

Level 1 DEMO

1" = 1'-0"
3

RAMP DETAIL

3/8" = 1'-0"
4

ENLARGED TOILET

EXISTING HAND SINK

3/8" = 1'-0"
5

WET
3/8" = 1'-0"

6
RESTROOM

3/16" = 1'-0"
7

Level 1

CEILING NOTES:
1. SEE SCHEDULES & LEGEND SHEET FOR ROOM FINISH INFORMATION.
2. SEE ELECTRICAL SHEETS FOR EXACT LENGTH, MODEL NUMBER & CIRCUITING INFORMATION FOR EACH OF THE LIGHT FIXTURES.
3. IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISCREPANCY BETWEEN QUANTITY, LOCATION, AND/OR TYPE OF LIGHTING FIXTURE BETWEEN ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING 

SHEETS.  G.C. SHALL NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY FOR CLARIFICATION.
4. WHITE LIGHT SWITCHES AS REQUIRED, SEE LIGHTING SWITCHING LEGEND.
5. EXIT SIGNS COMPLYING WITH 101:5−10 SHALL DEFINE EXITS AND ACCESS TO EXITS WHERE THE EXIT IS NOT IMMEDIATELY APPARENT.
6. THE ELECTRICIAN SHALL INSTALL ADDITIONAL WIRE TIE SUPPORTS FROM THE CEILING GRID TOT HE STRUCTURE ABOVE FRO SUPPORT OF THE LIGHT FIXTURES 

CLIPPED ON THE GRID.
7. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE A PRE−CONSTRUCTION SITE WALK THROUGH MEETING TO FIELD VERIFY OUTLET AND FIXTURE LOCATIONS AND 

TYPES WITH ARCHITECT, OWNER AND ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRIOR TO COMMENCING ELECTRICAL WORK AND PURCHASE OF FIXTURES.
8. RECESSED LIGHTING FIXTURES IN INSULATED CEILINGS MUST BE APPROVED FOR ZERO CLEARANCE INSULATION COVER IC) BY UNDERWRITER LABORATORIES 

OR OTHER TESTING/RATING LABORATORIES RECOGNIZED BY THE INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE OF BUILDING OFFICIALS (ICBO).
9. COMPLETE WIRING INSTALLATION FOR POWER, LIGHTING, SIGNAL SYSTEM & TELEPHONE.  ALL WIRING & MATERIAL SHALL BE IN FULL ACCORDANCE WITH 

NATIONAL, STATE & LOCAL ELECTRICAL CODES INCLUDING TITLE 24.
10. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SUBMITTAL PACKAGE FOR ARCHITECT, OWNER & ELECTRICAL ENGINEER TO REVIEW PRIOR TO ORDERING ANY LIGHT 

FIXTURES.
11. REFER TO ELECTRICAL PLANS FOR LOCATION OF LIGHTING AND EMERGENCY LIGHTING.  ALL DISCREPANCIES AND CONFLICTS ARE TO BE REPORTED TO 

ARCHITECT PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH WORK.
12. EMERGENCY EGRESS LIGHTS TO BE SELECTED BY ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR.  ALL EGRESS LIGHTING SHALL COMPLY WITH IBC SECTION 1006, TO 

PROVIDE MIN. 1.0 f−c LIGHT LEVEL ALONG WALL EGRESS PATHS.  VERIFY EGRESS PATHS WITH OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  POWER SOURCE FOR 
EMERGENCY LIGHTING SHALL CONFORM TO ARTICLE 700−12(e) OF THE LATEST NEC.  EMERGENCY AND EXIT LIGHTS SHOWN ARE DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY.  
LIGHTING DESIGNER TO VERIFY NUMBER AND LOCATION INCLUDING MODIFICATION ALLOWANCE WITH INITIAL BID.

13. ALL LIGHT FIXTURES OVER FOOD SERVICE & DISH CLEANING AREA SHALL HAVE A LENS COVER OR SHATTER PROOF BULBS.
14. ANY DIFFUSERS OR SPEAKER COVERS LOCATED IN THE RED CEILING AREA ARE TO BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE RED CEILING TILES BY USG (RED BAY).  ALSO 

ANY FIRE SUPPRESSION EQUIPMENT/SYSTEM & SPEAKERS LOCATED IN THE RED CEILING AREA ARE TO BE SHIFTED SO AS TO AVOID THE LAM−LITE BEAM 
LOCATED BELOW THE RED CEILING. 

15. ALL CEILING TILES IN FOOD PREP, DISH AREA AND SERVICE LINE TO BE CLEANABLE, SCRUBBABLE AND LIGHT IN COLOR.
16. ALL LIGHT FIXTURES OVER FOOD SERVICES/PREP AREAS ALONG WITH DISH CLEANING AREA TO BE SHIELDED WITH COVER OR SHATTER PROOF BULBS.

1. FINISHES SHALL BE APPLIED TO EXTEND OVER, UNDER &/OR BEHIND ANY ITEM OF BUILT−IN MILLWORK, EQUIPMENT, MIRRORS, ETC.
2. THE INSTALLER SHALL REFER TO THE ELEVATION AND DETAIL SHEETS FOR SPECIFIC LOCATION OF FINISHES.  SHOULD ANY DISCREPANCIES, OMISSIONS OR CONFLICTS BE FOUND, THE 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER IS TO BE NOTIFIED IMMEDIATELY.  NO WORK IS TO PROCEED WITHOUT PROPER DIRECTION FROM THE OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE/N.C.M.
3. ALL COVER PLATES SHALL BE WHITE, IVORY WON’T BE ACCEPTED.
4. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS, IF DRAWINGS ARE IN QUESTIONS, OBTAIN CLARIFICATION FROM TREY LUCAS AT 404−307−0771 PRIOR TO CONTINUING CONSTRUCTION.
5. ALL MATERIALS TO BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER’S SPECIFICATIONS.
6. FINAL PROFESSIONAL CLEANUP BY G.C.
7. ALL ANGLED WALLS ARE AT 45, 90 OR 135 DEGREES U.O.N.
8. ALL PAINT ON A GYPSUM BOARD SURFACES SHALL BE 3 COATS (=/−) 1 PRIME & 2 FINISH.
9. PROVIDE 5/8" MOISTURE RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD AT ALL WET LOCATIONS.
10. REFER TO MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL & PLUMBING SHEETS FOR MEP DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS.
11. ALL FIXTURES TO BE PROVIDED WITH ACCESSIBLE SHUT OFF VALVE.
12. WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH A.D.A REQUIREMENTS CONSULT ARCHITECT IF MOUNTING HEIGHTS AND CLEARANCES ARE IN DOUBT.
13. G.C. TO FIELD VERIFY AND COORDINATE DIMENSIONS, NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.
14. PROVIDE OCCUPANCY SIGNS CONFORMING TO APPLICABLE BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS.
15. REFER TO ELEVATIONS AND BUILDING SECTIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS.
16. MAXIMUM 1/2" OFFSET AT ALL THRESHOLDS AND AT ANY CHANGE OF FLOORING MATERIAL.  OFFSETS GREATER THAN 1/4" REQUIRE A MAXIMUM OF 45 DEGREES BEVEL.
17. DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE FINISHED FACE, COLUMN LINE OR CENTER OF DEMISING PARTITION, U.O.N.
18. TYPICAL DOOR JAMBS ARE LOCATED 2" OFF ADJACENT WALL U.O.N.
19. G.C. TO FURNISH WALL−MOUNTED FIRE EXTINGUISHER (F.E) (2A−10BC).  ALL F.E. MUST HAVE CURRENT INSPECTION TAGS ATTACHED AND SHALL BE MOUNTED 48" A.F.F. TO THE HANDLE.
20. COVE BASE TO BE USED IN ALL AREAS INDICATED, USE ROLL GOODS ONLY.  NO SEAMS SHALL OCCUR WITHIN 6" OF OUTSIDE CORNER.
21. BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH PROCUREMENT, THE RESPECTIVE INSTALLER SHALL FIELD VERIFY DIMENSIONS TO ASSURE THAT SUFFICIENT QUANTITIES OF MATERIAL ARE ORDERED TO 

COMPLETE THE WORK.
22. UPON RECEIPT FROM THE MANUFACTURER, THE INSTALL SHALL INSPECT MATERIALS FOR DEFECTS, FLAWS, SHIPPING DAMAGE, CORRECT COLOR AND PATTERN.  PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK, 

DAMAGED OR WRONG MATERIALS SHALL BE RETURNED TO THE MANUFACTURER FOR IMMEDIATE REPLACEMENT TO PREVENT DELAYS IN COMPLETION OF THE WORK.
23. CHANGE HVAC UNIT FILTERS AT COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION.
24. MISCELLANEOUS HVAC AND PLUMBING WORK NOT SPECIFICALLY NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL CODES.
25. INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THESE DOCUMENTS IS BASED ON CAR WASH EQUIPMENT SUPPLIER’S DOCUMENTS AND MAY REQUIRED ADJUSTMENTS AND/OR MODIFICATIONS TO CONFORM 

TO EXISTING CONDITIONS.  THE OWNER SHALL APPROVE ADJUSTMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH DESIGN INTENT.  IN NO CASE SHALL SAID ADJUSTMENTS REDUCE THE QUALITY OF THE 
CONSTRUCTION OR REDUCE THE PROJECTS CONFORMANCE TO STATE AND LOCAL CODES AND ORDINANCES.

26. DIMENSIONS MARKED "CLEAR" INDICATE A MINIMUM CLEARANCE THAT MUST BE MAINTAINED ANDY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO TREY LUCAS ARCHITECTURE LLC BEFORE 
CONSTRUCTION BEGINS.

27. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE DOORS, FRAMES, STOPS, MUTES AND BUTTS THROUGHOUT FOR A COMPLETE INSTALLATION.
28. PROVIDE 12" PUSH AND 18" PULL ON STRIKE SIDE OF DOOR.  PROVIDE 5" MINIMUM CLEAR AND 48" MINIMUM CLEAR IN THE DIRECTION OF THE DOOR SWING AND OPPOSITE DOOR 

SWING RESPECTIVELY.
29. G.C. SHALL GUARANTEE ALL PLUMBING MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP FREE OF DEFECTS FOR A PERIOD OF 1 YEAR FROM THE DATE OF ACCEPTANCE.  CORRECTION OF ANY DEFECTS 

SHALL BE COMPLETED WITHOUT ADDITIONAL CHARGE AND SHALL INCLUDE REPLACEMENT OR REPAIR OF ANY OTHER PHASE OF THE INSTALLATION REQUIRED.

CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

1/2" = 1'-0"
PARTITIONS



MEMORANDUM

TO: LEGACY DECATUR BOARD

FROM: MADELEINE HENNER

RE: DECATUR ARTS ALLIANCE PARTNERSHIP IN THE CREATIVE VILLAGE

DATE: MARCH 24, 2023

The purpose of this memorandum is to recommend that the Legacy Decatur Board of Directors

authorize the Executive Committee to review and approve a Memorandum of Understanding

(MOU) with the Decatur Arts Alliance.

The MOU outlines the previously discussed partnership with the Decatur Arts Alliance to

manage the Hyatt building art studios, screen artist portfolios for both housing and studio

leases, and support the artist giveback process. In return, the Decatur Arts Alliance will receive

10% of Creative Village Rental Revenue for arts programming at Legacy Park.

Once the MOU is executed, the Decatur Arts Alliance will be able to market and fill the seven

Hyatt studios, activating the Creative Village. When Edwards and Trustees are available for

housing, the Decatur Arts Alliance will employ their portfolio review expertise to ensure that

the Creative Village represents a diverse population of artists and art forms.

Legacy Decatur staff anticipate Edwards and Trustees Cottages to be renovated and ready for

tenants in the 2023 calendar year. Once renovated, the two buildings will offer one efficiency

apartment, four two-bedroom apartments, one three-bedroom apartment, and one ADA

four-bedroom apartment rented at the 60-80% AMI level. Based on a conservative revenue

estimation that assumes all bedrooms are rented at the 60% AMI level, Legacy Decatur can

expect to generate $100,872 in annual rental revenue. Decatur Arts Alliance will receive 10% of

these funds, estimated at $10,087 annually.

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the finalization of a management agreement based

on the terms already discussed for review and approval by the executive committee.


	8.3.22 Hawkins Building Cover ^0 Arch Plans (2).pdf
	Sheets
	1.0 - COVER
	A1 - ARCHITECTURAL PLANS & DETAILS





